ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2017
1:33 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Ma Costello, Chair
Senat or Shel |l ey Hughes, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevin Meyer
Senator Gary Stevens
Senator Berta Gardner
VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO. 45
"An Act relating to an exenption from the regulation of
construction contractors.”
- HEARD & HELD
WORKERS' COWPENSATI ON OVERVI EW
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 45

SHORT TI TLE: EXEMPTI ON: LI CENSI NG OF CONTRACTCORS
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMMERCE

02/ 01/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 17 (S) L&C, FI
02/ 07/ 17 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

JULI ANA MELIN, Staff
Senator Ma Costello

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2017



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 45 on behalf of the Senate
Labor and Commerce Comm tt ee.

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director

Di vi sion of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing
Departnent of Comrerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions and provided information
related to SB 45.

AARON VEELTALEN, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 45.

JEFF TWAIT, |icensed buil der

Kenai Peninsul a Buil ders Associ ation

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 45.

BRANDON SNODGRASS, Director

Al aska State Hone Buil di ng Associ ation

Treasurer, Anchorage Honme Buil ders Association
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 45.

JACK HEBERT, Chief Executive Oficer/Founder

Cold dimate Housi ng Research Center

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting testinony on SB 45.

PATRI CK DALTON, representing hinself
Del ta Junction
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 45.

PAUL M CHELSCHN JR. representing

Al aska State Honebuil di ng and

Anchor age Honebui | der Associ ati on

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 45.

LI NDA BRUCE, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Services

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 45.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 7, 2017



HEI DI DRYGAS, Commi ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the overview of
the Whrkers' Conpensation System

MARI E MARX, Director

Di vision of Wrkers’ Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Delivered an overview of the Wrkers'
Conpensati on System

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:33: 21 PM

CHAIR M A COSTELLO call ed the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, Gardner, Meyer, Hughes, and Chair
Costel |l 0.

SB  45- EXEMPTI ON: LI CENSI NG OF CONTRACTORS

CHAI R COSTELLO announced the considerati on of SB 45. She advi sed
that the intent is to hear the bill, take public coment, and
hold it for further consideration.

1: 34: 54 PM

JULI ANA MELIN, Staff, Senator Ma Costello, introduced SB 45 on
behal f of the Senate Labor and Commerce Conmittee paraphrasing
the foll om ng sponsor statenent:

Senate Bill 45 provides better protections for
consuners purchasing a honme from an unlicensed
bui | der.

Foll owi ng the housing market crash of the 1980s, the
Al aska State Legislature raised the standards for
homebui | ders. Residential contractors were required to
obtain a state-license, a residential endorsenent,
bonding, and insurance. In addition, prograns on
energy ratings and efficiency were established through
t he Al aska Housing Finance Corporation. These efforts
hel ped Al aska develop a honme construction industry
that offers quality options for home buyers that are
efficient and affordable.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2017



Currently state law provides an exenption that allows
individuals to build structures wi thout a contractor
license. Alaska law AS 08.18.161 allows anyone to
build one structure every two years wi thout a |icense.
Wiile the exenption was intended to allow Al askans to
build their own honme, the industry is seeing a grow ng
nunber of individuals using the exenption to operate
construction businesses.

In 2013, the Mat-Su Honme Building Association
estimated that al nost one-half of all new construction

home sales in their area were from unlicensed
construction compani es. W t hout a construction
contractor i cense, unl i censed bui | ders avoi d

requi renents for bonding and insurance that apply to
licensed builders. The wrding of the exenption
creates enforcenent problens and allows for potential
abuse by those who would seek to build hones for sale
wi thout the required state |icense.

Senate Bill 45 hel ps prevent abuse of this exenption

The bill would require anyone who builds and sells a
home without a contractor license to disclose the fact
that they do not have a license to the state within

two years of conpleting construction. Senate Bill 161
does not pr ohi bi t owner - bui l der construction or
require any form of state approval, it sinply calls

for disclosure to the Departnent of Conmmer ce,
Community & Econom c Devel opnent for builders selling
structures without a license.

SB 45 is supported by the Al aska State Honme Buil di ng
Associ ati on.

1:37: 06 PM
MS. MELIN provided a sectional analysis for SB 45.

Section 1 adds the following legislative intent

| anguage:

It is the intent of the legislature that the
exenptions listed in AS 08.18.161, as anended by sec.
3 of this Act, be construed broadly to allow

i ndividuals the freedom and ability to construct and
sell their own hones based on their own discretion.

Section 2 adds a new subsection (b) clarifying when
the Departnment of Commrerce, Conmmunity and Econom c

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2017



Devel opnent shoul d investigate whether a hone buil der

who has listed his house for sale is operating a
busi ness for which he/she would need a contractor's
i cense.

Section 3 nakes a series of technical changes that

appear on page 2, lines 22-30. They nake conform ng
changes and add | anguage t hat clarifies t he
exenptions. Language is added on page 3, lines 2-6, to

clarify that a disclosure nmust be filed with the state
if an owner sells a structure or advertises it for
sale within two years after construction begins.

Section 4 adds an applicability section. For the
purposes of this |aw, it defines beginning of
construction as either when construction begins on a
structure or when an owner enters into an agreement
with another person to provide |abor, act as a sub-
contractor, or provide materials for construction.

M5. MELIN listed the individuals available to testify and answer
guesti ons.

1:39:28 PM
SENATOR GARDNER said she likes the bill but wonders what the
consequences are for sonebody who fails to conply.

M5. MELIN deferred the question to M. Hovenden wth the
Di vi sion of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing.

SENATOR GARDNER said she reviewed the testinony from |ast year
when simlar legislation was heard, and sonme people indicated
that the bill would have greater inpact in rural Al aska where
there is less access to licensed builders. She asked if there
has been pushback fromthat area.

M5. MELIN replied sone of the contractors wll address the
effect in rural areas in particular.

1:40: 48 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked how this bill differs from the one | ast
year.

M5. MELIN said the primary difference is that SB 45 defines the

t wo- year tinmeline as starting W th t he begi nni ng of
construction. The bill |ast year was anbi guous in that regard.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2017



SENATOR MEYER asked why the bill didn't pass |ast year.
MS. MELI N deferred the question.
CHAI R COSTELLO i nvited Ms. Hovenden to coment on the bill

1:42: 08 PM

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director, Division of Corporations, Business and
Prof essional Licensing, Departnent of Commerce, Comunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) responded to Senator Gardner's
question about the penalty for failing to conply with provisions
in the bill. She explained that circumventing the honme builder's
| aw woul d fall under unlicensed practice in Title 08.

SENATOR GARDNER asked her to describe the consequences.
M5. HOVENDEN offered to follow up with the information.

SENATOR MEYER expressed interest in getting that information. He
asked if the zero fiscal note is realistic given the potenti al
need to investigate.

M5. HOVENDEN said the qualifier is the |anguage that says, “when
circunstances indicate that the owner is operating a business
for which the owner is required to register.” Any irregularity
would have to cone to the division's attention and that 1is
happening now. She anticipates this form could be downl oaded
from the division's website. Because the fornms would be from
honmeowners rather than licensees, the nanes would be listed in
an Excel spreadsheet and coul d be searched that way.

SENATOR MEYER asked how the two-year tinmeframe cane about.
M5. HOVENDEN said she didn't know.

1:45: 33 PM

SENATOR STEVENS noted that the committee heard that in 2013
half of the construction in Mat-Su involved unlicensed buil ders.
He asked if she has statistics on the nunber of wunlicensed
bui | ders st at ew de.

M5. HOVENDEN said she did not have statistics on unlicensed
builders in Mat-Su or statew de.

1: 46: 12 PM

SENATOR HUGHES asked how the penalties conpare to the cost of
the license and if there is anything to prevent repeat offenses.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2017



M5. HOVENDEN offered to follow up with an answer.

1:46:56 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO opened public testinmny on SB 45.

1:47:21 PM

AARON  VEELTALEN, Pr esi dent, Al aska State Horme Bui | di ng
Associ ation and President, Interior Alaska Building Association
testified in support of SB 45. Responding to an earlier question

about why the bill didn't pass last year, he said the sponsor
opted to pull the bill. He said these associations support the
bill to ensure that people can't build honme after honme wthout a

license or bonding. He enphasized that this is in the best
i nterest of consuners.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the two-year w ndow couldn’t be
circunvented easily by starting excavation then waiting a year
and one-half to start building.

MR WELTALEN said it'’s been a difficult issue, but he is
satisfied with the two-year tineline in SB 45.

CHAI R COSTELLO clarified that the bill went through the process

in the Senate and the sponsor withdrew the bill on the House
floor.

1:49: 20 PM

JEFF  TWAIT, licensed buil der, Kenai Peni nsula  Buil ders
Association, testified in support of SB 45. He said a l|ot of
work has gone into this bill and it's tine it passed. O her than
this being a consumer protection bill, it l|evels the playing

field by ensuring that people who build homes as a business
adhere to the licensing and bonding requirenents. It’s a matter
of fairness.

1:50:31 PM

BRANDON  SNODGRASS, Di rector, Alaska State Hone Building
Associ ation and Treasurer, Anchorage Hone Buil ders Associ ation,
testified in support of SB 45. He said he is also in charge of
construction lending for First National Bank Al aska and has seen
the ramfications of owner-built hones on consuners. Last year
someone who was using a licensed builder applied for a |oan but
couldn’t be accommobdated because the appraisal only used
conparabl es that were owner/builder honmes and all of them had
sold for quite a bit below nmarket. He opined that as nore and
nore honmes built by unlicensed builders go on the market, al

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2017



home values wll be affected. It will also mke it nore
difficult to obtain financing.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if all licensed contractors are nenbers of
the Al aska State Hone Buil di ng Associ ati on.

MR. SNODGRASS answer ed no

SENATOR STEVENS said he would like to see where the licensed
contractors are located and the size of communities where there
are few to no licensed contractors. He acknow edged that
woul dn’t be M. Snodgrass’s purview.

MR. SNODGRASS said the Departnment of Comerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent would likely have that information. He
di scl osed that he has financed hones for owner/builders for the
purpose of selling when it nakes sense. He also described a
situation where a group was obviously skirting the rules and
getting preferential treatnent.

1:54: 45 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO asked what recourse a famly has after they have
t aken possession of an owner-built hone and there are probl ens.

MR. SNODGRASS said there is no recourse if the builder is
unl i censed.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if the requirenent for an owner/builder to
fill out a form and submt it to the departnent is overly
oner ous.

MR. SNODGRASS answered no, it’'s nothing conpared to what he
requires for themto get a | oan.

1:55:39 PM
SENATOR GARDNER observed that passage of this bill would
i ncrease the cost of new hones for everyone.

MR. SNODGRASS opined that it will return prices to the |eve
they should be. He added that hones built by licensed builders
are generally a better product.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if an owner/builder who is not a |icensed
contractor is able to offer workers’ conpensation benefits and
i nsurance coverage to soneone working with himher; and if the
owner/ buil der can offer a warranty that has backi ng.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2017



MR. SNODGRASS said he didn’t know for sure.

1:58: 11 PM

SENATOR HUGHES asked if bankers and nortgage |enders wll be
watching to ensure the owner/builder files the required form
because sone people may not be aware it is a requirenent.

MR. SNODGRASS said he’'s not in the nortgage business, so he
didn't know if that’s sonmething they'd track

2:01: 06 PM
At ease

2:02:33 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and recognized Patrick
Dalton as the next testifier on SB 45.

2:03:18 PM
At ease due to technical difficulties

2:06: 36 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and asked M. Hébert to
respond to Senator Gardner’s earlier questions.

2:07:29 PM

JACK HEBERT, Chief Executive Oficer/Founder, Cold dimte
Housi ng Research Center, Fairbanks, Al aska, said he has been a
licensed general contractor with a residential endorsenment for
40 years.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if he agrees wth testinony |ast year that
the bill would have a greater effect in rural conmunities
because there are fewer |icensed buil ders.

MR. HEBERT said he didn't believe so; in rural areas, nost of
t he building other than by owner/builders is done by the housing
aut horities.

SENATOR HUGHES asked if there is any concern that energy
efficient hones that are built by an unlicensed builder m ght
have ventilation problens that cause health issues. She noted
that this m ght be another consuner protection aspect.

MR. HEBERT said that is a huge problem in both newer, tighter
homes and ol der hones that have poor ventilation. Solving the
problem is a matter of education and understanding that good
indoor air quality is wessential. The Cold dimte Housing

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2017



Research Center has developed affordable systens such as
br HEAThe that provides fresh air and high efficiency heating in
an energy efficient building.

SENATOR HUGHES ask if there is a problem that Al askans
unknowi ngly buy honmes wth poor air quality because sone
owner/builders don’'t have the training and put in ventilation
systens incorrectly.

MR, HEBERT said there are thousands of hones in Al aska that have
poor ventilation because of poor building science and |ack of
bui |l der education. It’s particularly problenmatic when a buil der
uses part of a technology but not the whol e package. That’'s why
licensed contractors are required to take continuing education
in several areas including ventilation.

SENATOR HUGHES commented that we can conclude that people who
repeatedly sell their owner-built honmes probably aren’t getting
adequate training increasing the potential that Al askans are
living in hones that don’t have good air quality.

MR. HEBERT added that the hone is likely going to be unhealthy
t hroughout the life of the buil ding.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how many hours of training it takes to
become a contractor.

MR. HEBERT said 16 hours of continuing education is required
every two years.

2:13:58 PM
PATRI CK DALTON, representing hinself, Delta Junction, testified
in opposition to SB 45. He said he has no problemwth this type
of regulation in the organized areas of the state, but he would
i ke an exenption for people living in the unorgani zed areas of
Al aska. He said the people that live in the unorganized areas
are different. "There is nore of a liberty mndedness out here
and we appreciate the absence of regulation.”™ He maintained
that inposing unnecessary regul ations on people that don't want
it wll cost the state noney. Requiring people to fill out
paperwork when they sell their house is going too far, he said.
He pointed out that the legislature sits as the assenbly for the
unorgani zed borough and as such has the responsibility of
representing that population and listening to their requests. He
suggested providing incentives to get people to do a good job
when they build instead of passing unwanted regul ati ons.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2017



2:18: 08 PM

PAUL M CHELSOHN JR., Alaska State Honebuilding, and Anchorage
Honebui |l der Association, testified in support of SB 45. He
refuted the previous testinony arguing that the unorganized
areas need this type of regulations nore than the organized
areas. He cited exanples of problens he has seen when people
purchased owner-built hones. The first was a 14-nonth-old hone
outside of Wasilla that had a failed septic system Upon further
i nvestigation he found sonme of the floors were out of |evel and
the walls were out of square. The builder of record could not be
found and the cost to replace the septic system and bring the
floors and walls up to standard cost about $23,000. The second
exanple was a hone outside Soldotna in the unorgani zed borough.
This was the third house that owner/builder had sold. He was
asked to inspect the hone and found 18 code infractions. These
included no bolts fastening the house to the foundation, a
bedr oom egress w ndow that was too small to neet fire codes, and
an undersized gas pipe to the house. He said he didn't know if
t he house sold, but if it did it was probably a cash sale.

MR. M CHELSOHN said those are the kinds of issues that arise
when builders are unlicensed, and it's the end user that suffers
t he consequences. Referring to earlier questions, he agreed with
M. Hebert that indoor air quality is a serious issue and that
continuing education is critical to ensure the health and safety
of the end user. Wen problens arise it's generally a matter of
the building not being constructed to code and there is usually
zero recourse other than filing a civil lawsuit.

Referring to Senator Steven's question, he said the two-year
tineline was a conprom se. The problem with the bill |ast year
was that the starting point for the tinmeline was subjective. SB
45 establishes that the tineline starts at the beginning of the
project, which is customarily when the footing and foundation is
put in place. He urged the commttee to pass the bill, adding
that it should have happened | ast year.

2:28: 08 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if his wunderstanding is that the bill
pl aces no additional requirenents on an owner/buil der who buil ds
hi s/ her own hone. She cited the new | anguage on page 3, lines 2-
6, that requires the owner/builder to file a form with the
departnment indicating that they are "not engaged in a business
for which the owner is required to register as a contractor
under this chapter;". She asked if he agrees that other than
dating, signing, and filing the form no other requirenents are
i nposed on the owner/ buil der.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2017



MR. M CHELSOHN said that’s correct. He added that the
| egislature not only sits as the assenbly for the unorganized
borough, it also sits as the representative of all the citizens
of the state. Thus it sits to represent the uneducated buyers of
t hese hones. The bill sinply clarifies the rules for
owner/ buil ders who sell their home and are not registered as a
contractor.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if he agrees that the bill does not provide
a penalty. Filing the form with the departnment sinply provides
i nformation for consumer protection purposes.

MR. M CHELSOHN said he understood the departnent representative
say she didn't know if there was a penalty but would follow up
with an answer. He said he believes there should be a penalty,
but he didn't want to slow the bill by suggesting that that
anmendnent .

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if owner/builders are unique to Al aska or
if this is an issue in other states.

MR. M CHELSOHN said the requirenents vary, but the issue is not
as preval ent in other states.

SENATOR HUGHES asked if there would be a penalty for innocent
| ack of know edge of the requirenment if the person clearly was
not engaged in a business. She expressed hope that those
i ndi vidual s would not be penalized; they would just be asked to
submt the form

MR  MCHELSOHN said he didn't know but he believes that
infractions tend to occur when there isn't a penalty for an
i nfraction.

SENATOR HUGHES clarified that she is asking about a person who
is not running a business but nust sell wthin the two-year
timefrane.

MR. M CHELSOHN said he believes the bill has a provision to
addr esses that.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked Ms. Bruce to respond to the last two
guesti ons.

2:35:56 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2017



LI NDA BRUCE, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services, Legislative
Affairs Agency, Al aska State Legislature, said this version of
the bill does not include anything related to an exception to
the exenptions [listed in AS 08.18.161}. Regarding the penalty,
she said it appears that a person who didn't submt the form
could be issued a citation for a violation under AS 08.18. 117.

SENATOR HUGHES asked what the fine would be. She clarified that
she was tal king about a well-neaning person who was not engaged
in a business and didn't know to submt the form

MS. BRUCE said she couldn't answer that at this time, but it
woul d be m ni mal .

SENATOR GARDNER said she isn't sure there is any conseguence
what soever for violating the statute should the bill pass.
Soneone could get a citation and go on and build anot her house.

M5. BRUCE explained that if the departnent investigated and
found the owner was running a business without registering as a
contractor under that chapter, additional provisions m ght
apply. For exanple, the departnent could issue an admnistrative
fine or petition the superior court to issue a civil penalty or
injunction. Under certain facts the person may be guilty of a
cl ass B m sdeneanor.

2:39:10 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if adding |anguage authorizing a penalty
would result in a positive fiscal note.

M5. BRUCE deferred the question to the departnent.

SENATOR STEVENS said he, too, would Ilike nore information
because cities and boroughs also have building codes. In his
community substantial fines are attached to those viol ations.

MR M CHELSOHN offered to serve as a resource to the commttee
menbers goi ng forward

2:40: 39 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO cl osed public testinony on SB 45 and held the
bill in commttee.

2:40: 56 PM
At ease

Wor kers’ Conpensation Overvi ew

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2017



2:45:13 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and announced the next
order of business is an overview of workers’ conpensation by
Hei di Drygas the Comm ssioner of the Al aska Department of Labor
& Workforce Developnent and Mari Marks, the Director of the
Division of Wrkers’ Conpensation. She noted a bill was
forthcom ng.

2:45: 58 PM

HEI DI  DRYGAS, Conmmissioner, Alaska Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opment (DOLWD), said the departnent was asked to
present an overview of workers' conpensation: how it works, a
| ookback at key nunmbers, an update on the Medical Services
Review Conmmttee, and a discussion of the challenges the
division is facing. She noted that M. Marx would deliver the
overvi ew.

2:46: 55 PM

MARI E  MARX, Director, Di vision of Wor ker s’ Conpensati on,
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent (DOLWD) expl ai ned
that the division adm nisters the Al aska Wrkers' Conpensation
Act, the intent of which is set out in statute. She read the
m ssion statenment which is to ensure quick, efficient, fair and
predictable delivery of benefits to injured workers at a
reasonable cost to enployers. She relayed that workers’
conpensation is a system of insurance that is designed to
protect workers and enployers from | osses caused by job-rel ated
accidents and illnesses. Al 50 states have these | aws.

She described the insurance system as the grand conprom se. The
enpl oyer pays nedical and wage replacenent benefits to an
injured worker. In exchange, the injured worker receives |imted
benefits and gives up the right to sue the enployer. It is a no-
fault system that does not provide conpensation for non-economc
or punitive damages.

2:48: 25 PM

IVS. MARX said the Dbenefits include nedical care, wage
repl acenent benefits, death benefits, and retraining benefits.
In the event of an injury, the enployee notifies the enpl oyer of
the injury, the enployer reports the injury to the division, and
t he enployer begins to pay benefits. In the event of a dispute,
the injured worker files a claim with the Al aska Wrkers'
Conpensati on Board. The enployer nmay admt or deny the claim |If
the claimis denied, the parties engage in discovery and submt
the records to the board. If the case isn't settled, either

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2017



party nmay request a hearing. The entire board has 18 nenbers,
but the hearing is conducted by a board panel consisting of one
| abor nenber, one industry nmenber and one attorney staff nenber
who <chairs the hearing and rules on evidence. The board
evaluates the opinions from the enployee's doctor and the
enpl oyer's nedical evaluator. If those opinions disagree, the
parties can request a second independent nedical evaluator. The
panel deliberates and issues a deci sion.

2:50: 58 PM
M5. MARX said the workers' conpensation requirenents say that an
enployer with one or nore full or part-tine enployees nust

purchase and maintain insurance policies to cover their
enpl oyees. This includes enployees who are friends and famly.
| ndependent contractors are not enployees and as such they are
responsi ble for the |osses they may experience. She highlighted
t hat some enployers try to avoid paying premuns by
m sclassifying their enployees as independent contractors. This
gi ves those enployers an unfair econom c advantage. Current |aw
does not define independent contractor, but the current,
mul tifactor test is set out in board regulation.

An enployer who fails to insure their enployees may be subject
to civil penal ties. She highlighted that the special
investigation wunit's priority is to ensure that insurance
policies are in place to prevent wuninsured |osses thereby
protecting both enployees and enployers. The division gives
gener al and industry-specific enployer workshops to help
enpl oyers understand how to protect thensel ves agai nst uninsured
i njuries.

2:52:42 PM

M5. MARX provided data on the nunber of Alaska workplace
injuries reported, clainms filed, and total conpensation paynents
made. She pointed out that injury frequency has generally
declined from 2006-2015. In each of those years the division
recei ved about 20,000 injury reports and about 1,200 clains were
filed. Total conpensation paynents have increased over tinme; in
2015 just over $300 mllion in workers' conpensation benefits
wer e pai d.

2:53:31 PM

M5. MARX reviewed the program challenges the division is
actively working to address. The first is rising nedical costs
and their inmpact on workers' conpensation premuns. She said
Al aska has one of +the highest workers’ conpensation prem um
rates in the nation and the primary cost driver is nedical

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 7, 2017



costs. For Alaska that represents approxinmately 76 percent of
the total <claim costs. To help contain those <costs the
| egislature in 2014 passed House Bill 316 that established the
Medi cal Services Review Conmittee (MSRC). The conmittee nade
recommendati ons regarding the workers’ conpensation fee schedul e
that were put into regulation. This resulted in an estinated
reduction in overall system costs of 3.7 percent. As required by
the governing legislation, the commttee will continue to neet
annually and make recomendations on how to adjust the fee
schedul e.

Providing tinmely dispute resolution is another program
chal l enge. The governor introduced SB 40 that w Il address these
i nefficiencies and speed up the dispute resol ution process.

The declining Wrkers’ Safety and Conpensation Admnistration
Account (WSCAA) balance is another program challenge. This
program was established in 2000 to create a stable funding
source for the state’s workers’ conpensation and worker safety
prograns. Revenue is collected through service fees from
i nsurance conpanies and it provides economc incentives for
enpl oyers to provide safe work environnments. The WSCAA bal ance
has declined over tinme. One reason is that revenue into the
account was not increased when the |legislature created the
Wor kers’ Conpensation Appeal s Conm ssion. Should the governor’s

legislation to repeal the Wrkers’ Conmpensation  Appeal s
Conmi ssi on pass, WSCAA costs would be reduced by about $440, 000
per year. That bill is SB 29. The governor’s omibus bill also

addresses the declining balance by allocating to the departnent
a |larger percentage of the annual service fees insurers pay.

Prosecuting civil and crimnal worker msclassification and
failure to insure cases is a very costly challenge. Current
statutory penalties are extrenely high and don't wthstand
review on appeal. They are often contested which increases
l[itigation costs and enployer defaults. The governor’s omnibus
bill will streamine the process of inposing civil penalties by
changing the calculation and the maximum civil penalty to an
easi er cal cul ation.

2:57:12 PM

M5. MARX highlighted the pillars of the Al aska W rkers
Conmpensation System - quick, efficient, fair, predictable, and
reasonabl e cost, that guide the division's adm nistration of the
Workers’ Conpensation Act. She said the governor’s omnibus
wor kers’ conpensation bill addresses all the pillars focusing on
fairness, efficiency, and quickness in the process. This is done

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2017



by speeding up dispute resolutions, inproving delivery of
benefits to injured workers, strengthening fraud prosecutions
and enpl oyer conpliance, and reducing admnistrative costs. She
of fered to answer questions.

2:58:12 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked if injury frequency in Alaska is still over
20, 000 per year

M5. MARX replied it was very close to that mark in 2015.
SENATOR MEYER asked where those injuries are occurring.

M5. MARX said back injuries are nost comon. They nust be
reported even though a majority do not require tinme off work or
nmedi cal care

SENATOR MEYER asked if one occupation or industry accounts for
the nost injuries. He recalled that at one tinme the fishing
i ndustry was the nost dangerous, but he didn't know about the
nunber of injuries.

M5. MARX said the high hazard industries have higher prem um
rates because their enployees are nore at risk. Premuns for
clerical work would be much Ilower than construction, for
exanpl e.

3:00: 44 PM
COM SSI ONER DRYGAS offered to provide specific data on the
occupations where injuries are occurring nore frequently.

SENATOR MEYER said he’d appreciate getting that information. He
expressed concern that the graphs show that injury frequency has
been declining since 2006 but conpensation paynents are
increasing. He asked if it’s a matter of fewer, but nore serious
injuries or a matter of higher nedical costs.

COWMM SSI ONER DRYGAS replied it is nmedical costs.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if an owner/builder is required to carry
wor kers’ conpensation insurance on someone they hire if they
aren’t covered by another conpany.

M5. MARX explained that the Alaska Wrkers’ Conpensation Act
covers enployers, which is a person or a conpany engaged in
busi ness. A honeowner who calls a plunber to do work is not
engaged in business, so the plunber’s injury would not be

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -17- February 7, 2017



covered by the Al aska Wrkers’ Conpensation Act. She advised
that anyone who is engaged as a business contractor should have
wor kers’  conpensation coverage in place. Even i ndependent
contractors. |If they have enployees and they fail to cover
t hensel ves for those enployees’ work place injuries, Alaska |aw
has a provision that requires the contractor to pay for that
work injury to ensure the burden doesn’'t fall on the injured
wor ker .

SENATOR STEVENS asked what SB 29 does and where it is in the
process.

M5. MARX replied SB 29 repeals the Al aska Wrkers' Conpensation
Appeal s Commission. If it passes, it wll save about $440,000
per year. A second governor bill focuses on naking the worker
conpensati on di spute process nore efficient and cost saving. She
clarified that both are governor's bills.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked what the budget is for the workers
conpensation division and who pays for their salaries.

COW SSI ONER DRYGAS said they would follow up with specific
information, but nost of the division is funded by the Wrkers
Saf ety and Conpensati on Adm nistrati on Account (WSCAA).

3:06: 15 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO asked what she sees as the main drivers to reduce
medi cal costs; and what can the legislature do to assist.

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS said the departnent has struggled with how
to address rising nedical costs while balancing the pillars that
gui de the Division of Wrkers' Conpensation through statute. The
Medical Services Review Conmittee has helped to bring down
prem um costs for enployers, but it's a work in progress. She
menti oned the conversion factors that the commttee works on and
deferred further explanation to Ms. Marx.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if data on worker conpensation clains is
gathered on fornms an enployee fills out in the doctor’s office.

COWM SSI ONER DRYGAS replied many physicians opt to ask if the
injury is work-rel ated.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if the same injury costs nore if it is a
wor kers' conpensation claimconpared to private insurance.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 7, 2017



COM SSIONER DRYGAS said there generally is a difference.
"Oftentinmes services provided through the workers’ conpensation
system are higher than services provided to individuals who are
not suffering from a work-related injury or illness.” The
Medical Services Review Conmttee is wusing the conversion
factors to bring down the cost of reinbursenent to providers
because many of those reinbursenents are out of whack relative
to private insurance. She cited the exanple of a broken arm

SENATOR  STEVENS comment ed t hat probl ens W th wor ker s’
conpensati on have been around since the First State Legislature
in 1959.

SENATOR HUGHES asked if she said that the cost of a broken arm
billed through workers' conpensation insurance would be higher
that if it was billed through private insurance.

M5. MARX replied the Jlack of transparency regarding what
providers bill and what insurers pay is a big challenge for al

states. There is no opportunity for conparison shopping. "W
don't really know what that group health data is. W can pay and
get sone data but it's not easy to get that group health
conparison.” The data the division has been able to get shows
that workers' conpensation costs nore than group health. The
Medical Services Review Conmttee has found that costs are
substantially nmore in certain areas of practice such as surgery
and radiology. The conmttee is |looking at how to contain those
costs while maintaining the injured worker's access to quality
nmedi cal care. The idea is to phase in changes over a few years.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if an injured worker would be sent outside
the state if the cost for the procedure or treatnent was |ess
than in Al aska.

M5. MARX expl ained that the enployee can choose their physician
wherever he/she may be, but the fees are subject to the Al aska
Wrkers’ Conpensation Act. The bill that passed in 2014 had a
provision that said the maxinmum reinbursenent is according to
the fee schedule in the state that the service is provided.

3:16: 04 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO asked where the Medical Services Review Conmttee
is in the process for providing recomendations.

M5. MARX advi sed that the Medical Services Review Commttee held

its first neeting shortly after House Bill 316 passed. They have
held 12 neetings that are open to the public and have a public

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -19- February 7, 2017



comment period. The reconmendati ons were forwarded to the Al aska
Workers' Conpensation Board to go through the regulatory
process. The board held two neetings, public conment was taken
and the reconmendations were finalized in March 2016.

The strategy going forward is to annually hold neetings in the
sumer to devel op the next round of recomendations. One will be
a joint neeting of the Medical Services Review Cormittee and the
Al aska \Workers' Conmpensation Board to ensure consensus.
Thereafter the regulatory process will go forward so they are in
effect in January of each year. She urged anyone who has public
comment on how to reduce costs or suggestions for the conversion
factor recomendations to attend the neetings.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if it is correct that workers' conpensation
does not have in-network and out-of-network providers.

M5. MARX said that is correct; the Wrkers' Conpensation Act
allows both the enployer and the enployee to have a choice of
physician. Each party is allowed one change w thout getting
perm ssion fromthe other party.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked how many enployers in the state pay into
t he workers' conpensation program

M5. MARX offered to follow up with the answer.

SENATOR HUGHES asked if anything would prevent an enployer from
having a |ist of preferred providers.

M5. MARX replied enployers absolutely can supply a list, but the
i njured worker can select outside that |ist.

CHAI R COSTELLO t hanked the presenters.
3:20:15 PM
There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee

Chair Costello adjourned the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Comm ttee neeting at 3:20 p. m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 20- February 7, 2017



